
 
 
Meeting attendees with disabilities that need special accommodations should contact the Cass County 
Highway Department at 701-298-2370 prior to the meeting to make arrangements. 
 

CASS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
 Thursday, June 23, 2022 at 7:00 a.m.  
Vector Conference Room, 1201 Main Avenue West, West Fargo, 58078 

 
A. Call to Order 
B. Roll Call 
C. Determination of a Quorum 
D. Approve Meeting Minutes of May 26, 2022 
 
E. Public Hearing Items 

 
1. Hearing on an application requesting a Major Subdivision Plat of 

TEPI Fourth Subdivision located in Section 33, Township 140 
North, Range 52 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, Casselton 
Township, Cass County North Dakota.  
 

2. Hearing on an application requesting a Minor Subdivision Plat of 
Cottonwood Acres Subdivision located in Section 4, Township 142 
North, Range 55 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, Lake Township, 
Cass County North Dakota.  

 
3. Hearing on an application requesting a Minor Subdivision Plat of 

Nudell Subdivision located in Section 33, Township 139 North, 
Range 55 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, Hill Township, Cass 
County North Dakota.  

 
4. Hearing on an application requesting a Minor Subdivision Plat of 

Douglas Bower Subdivision located in Section 18, Township 143 
North, Range 54 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, Page Township, 
Cass County North Dakota.  

 
5. Hearing on the Cass County Subdivision Ordinance update. 

 
 

F. New Business 
 

G. Old Business 
Variance Request – Gary Hoglund 

H. Adjournment 



Planning Commission Minutes – May 26, 2022 1 
 

CASS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
May 26, 2022 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 

A meeting of the Cass County Planning Commission was called to order on May 26, 2002 at 7:00am in 
the Vector Conference room at the Highway Department. 

 
B. ROLL CALL 

Planning Commissioners attending in person were David Gust, Ken Lougheed, Dr. Tim Mahoney, Brad 
Olson, Commissioner Mary Scherling, Kris Schipper, and Keith Gohdes. Rocky Bertsch and Keith Monson 
were absent. 
 
Also attending in person were Grace Puppe, Cass County Planner, Jason Benson, Cass County Engineer, 
Joel Quanbeck, KLJ Planner, Dan Buede and Ryan Thorpe representing the Ethanol Plant, and Gary 
Hoglund. 
 

C. DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 
It was determined that there was a quorum based on the roll call. 

 
D. MINUTES, APPROVED 

MOTION, passed 
Mr. Gust moved and Mr. Olson seconded to approve the minutes of the April 28, 2022 
meeting as presented. 
Motion carried. 

 
E. PUBLIC HEARING 

1. Hearing on an application requesting a Minor Subdivision Plat of McPherson Subdivision 
located in the SW ¼ of Section 35, Township 143 North, Range 54 West of the 5th Principal 
Meridian, Page Township, Cass County North Dakota. 
Mr. Lougheed opened the public hearing. 

 
Ms. Puppe provided an overview of an applicant seeking approval of a minor subdivision entitled 
McPherson Subdivision to plat a one (1) Lot subdivision of approximately 4.59 acres. According to 
the applicant, the subdivision is requested to break out a tract of land with an existing house on 
it, from a quarter section to a residential lot. 
 
The proposed ownership and maintenance responsibility of the subdivision will be private. The 
subdivision will use an existing 18th St SE (County Road 26) road access, ditches for storm sewer 
conveyance, rural water, and on-site septic systems for wastewater treatment. 
Upon hearing no public comments, the public hearing was closed. 

MOTION, passed 
Mr. Gust moved and Dr. Mahoney seconded to accept the findings and recommend 
approval to the County Commission with any conditions outlined by the County 
Planner. 
On a roll call vote with all in favor, motion carried. 
 



Planning Commission Minutes – May 26, 2022 2 
 

2. Hearing on an application requesting a Major Subdivision Plat of TEPI Third Subdivision located 
in Section 33, Township 140 North, Range 52 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, Casselton 
Township, Cass County North Dakota. 
Mr. Lougheed opened the public hearing. 

 
Ms. Puppe provided an overview of an applicant seeking approval of a minor subdivision entitled 
TEPI Third Subdivision to plat a seven (7) Lot subdivision of approximately 498.15 acres. According 
to the applicant, the plat of TEPI Third Subdivision was approved by the City of Casselton, North 
Dakota and recorded in the Cass County, North Dakota Recorder’s Office on December 19, 2013, 
as Document No. 1407712. 
 
A consent and joinder by Cass County is required because a portion of such plat lies within the 
City of Casselton’s ETJ (shared jurisdiction with Cass County) and the other portion of such plat 
lies outside of the ETJ. This application is being made to cure the jurisdictional defect of such plat 
by retroactively obtaining Cass County’s consent to and approval thereof. 
 
The proposed ownership and maintenance responsibility of the subdivision will be private. The 
subdivision will use an existing 153rd Ave SE (County Road 23) road access, ditches and storm 
sewer system for storm sewer conveyance, rural water, and on-site septic systems for wastewater 
treatment. 
 
Dan Buede explained that the plat was previously platted through the City of Casselton and the 
County was not included as an oversight of the ETJ area. The idea of a consent and joinder came 
about to correct this and include the County in the approval of this plat. There has been 
preliminary discussion with the City of Casselton about annexing the property or coming up with 
an agreement to control zoning/subdivision with the township and County. 
 
Mr. Benson went over the access to the county road and addressed traffic concerns for this 
property. The current property has paved roads, stormwater pond, lighting and access to internal 
lots.  

MOTION, passed 
Dr. Mahoney moved and Commissioner Scherling seconded to accept the findings and 
recommend approval to the County Commission with any conditions outlined by the 
County Planner. 
On a roll call vote with all in favor, motion carried. 
 

3. Hearing on an application requesting a Major Subdivision Plat of TEPI Fourth Subdivision located 
in Section 33, Township 140 North, Range 52 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, Casselton 
Township, Cass County North Dakota. 
Mr. Lougheed opened the public hearing. 

 
Ms. Puppe provided an overview of an applicant seeking approval of a minor subdivision entitled 
TEPI Fourth Subdivision to plat a five (5) Lot subdivision of approximately 285.51 acres. According 
to the applicant, the plat of TEPI Fourth Subdivision is a replat of Lot 1, Block 1, TEPI Third 
Subdivision, splitting such lot into 5 lots. 
 
The proposed ownership and maintenance responsibility of the subdivision will be private. The 
subdivision will use an existing 153rd Ave SE (County Road 23) road access, ditches and storm 



Planning Commission Minutes – May 26, 2022 3 
 

sewer system for storm sewer conveyance, rural water, and on-site septic systems for wastewater 
treatment. 
 
Mr. Buede explained what the 5 additional lots will be used for. Lot 1 is the existing site of the 
ethanol plant and its current processes. Lot 2 may be sold to a buyer who is wishing to utilize the 
power to the south of it, still working on the purchase agreement. Lots 3-5 are going to be used 
for a value-added process. The buildings may be owned by others, but they will process feed grain 
further increasing the value and make it more efficient to transport.  
 
Mr. Benson went over the access to the county road and addressed traffic concerns for this 
property. There will be limited additional traffic added due to this project and will be utilizing 
existing accesses to the property. When the Soybean facility is built additional turn lanes will be 
added to help control the flow of traffic to that facility as well. At this time, the speed would not 
need to be reduced on this County Road. The bigger concern is the current interchange. It has low 
visibility over the top as you are driving over and is only 24 feet wide. This makes it difficult for 
farm equipment to go over without first having a pilot car to control traffic. 
 
Mr. Buede also said that they are trying to better control the line of trucks waiting on the County 
Road to access the facility. They working to better coordinate corn delivery to when the farmer 
sells, they must deliver within the same month. The ethanol facility can stage 65 trucks onsite.  

MOTION, passed 
Dr. Mahoney moved and Ms. Schipper seconded to accept the findings and recommend 
approval to the County Commission with any conditions outlined by the County 
Planner. 
On a roll call vote with all in favor, motion carried. 
 

4. Hearing on amendments to the Cass County Subdivision Ordinance. 
Mr. Gust opened the public hearing. 

 
Mr. Quanbeck provided an overview of the update to the Subdivision Ordinance and the changes 
still left to make. He is continuing to update the graphics and tables and will review the placement 
within the document with Ms. Puppe. The new ordinance will have the minor subdivision as its 
own section that will include all info that will need to be available to the applicant. Mr. Quanbeck 
will also provide a diagram with the process that will be hyperlinked within the document to be 
able to jump to specific sections. 
 
Ms. Puppe provided an overview that all applications will be reviewed by the County Planner and 
then brought before the Planning Commission with a recommendation. Then no matter if the 
Planning Commission approves or denies the application or variance their recommendation will 
be heard at the County Commission. If the application is recommended for approval by the 
Planning Commission, it will be placed on the consent agenda for the County Commission 
meeting. If the recommendation of the Planning Commission was to deny the application or 
variance the item will be placed on the regular agenda of the County Commission meeting. This 
will allow for the County Planner to provide background on the application as well as let the 
applicant speak also. Commissioner Scherling commented that it will be very helpful in knowing 
why something is denied assisting with the decision to approve or deny. The County Commission 
will make the final decision of the plat. 
 



Planning Commission Minutes – May 26, 2022 4 
 

MOTION, tabled until next meeting 
Discussion: Commission members discuss the updates to the subdivision ordinance and 
want to look into the variance process further to make sure that there aren’t any holes 
that could be taken advantage of. Ms. Puppe will bring the concerns before Tracy Peters 
to review before the next meeting. 
Dr. Mahoney moved, and Mr. Gust seconded to table this item until there is further 
review by staff. 
On a roll call vote with all in favor, motion carried. 

 
 

F. NEW BUSINESS  
Mr. Lougheed left the meeting at 8:00am. 
 
Information Only – Gary Hoglund Variance Request 
Mr. Hoglund is looking to plat a one (1) lot subdivision of approximately 11.65 acres. The subdivision is 
requested to plat the one lot as a developable lot for sale. The subdivision will be privately maintained 
and use a new 156th Ave SE road access, ditches for storm sewer conveyance, rural water, and on-site 
septic systems for wastewater treatment. He has requested a variance from the deed restriction 
requirement as he does not own any surrounding property. The adjacent property owners have stated 
that they are not willing to sign a deed restriction on his behalf. His property is landlocked by these 
other property owners. 
 
The Planning Commission discussed the property and its current use versus the proposed use. They 
voiced concerns about granting the variance and requested Ms. Puppe to follow up with Tracy Peters 
to see what the implications of this variance may be and how they could affect future variance requests. 
 

G. OLD BUSINESS 
 None 
 

H. ADJOURNMENT 
On motion by Mr. Olson seconded by Dr. Mahoney and all voting in favor, the meeting was adjourned 
at 8:10 am. 

 
Minutes prepared by Grace Puppe, Cass County Planner, Highway Department 































AutoCAD SHX Text
S1/2 OF THE NW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
Government Lot 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
Government Lot 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1/2 of the NE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1/2 of the NW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gov't Lot 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gov't Lot 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gov't Lot 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gov't Lot 1

















AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
N



AutoCAD SHX Text
N















SE 1/4

SW 1/4

Q
U

AR
TE

R 
LI

N
E

&
 ℄

 R
O

AD

LOT 1
±2.711 ACRES

5/8" REBAR
DOC. NO. 458

BLOCK   1

N86°12'53"E
332.74'

299.74'

33.00'

332.67'

43
3.
89

'

N
02

°2
4'
40

"W
42

1.
47

'

SW 1/4

SE 1/4

N88°21'14"E
2630.30'S88°21'12"W

2598.19'

S0
2°
24

'4
0"
E

52
78

.1
5'

R N

W T

N

T

R

W

24 19
155

43

18
3
13

41

45

5/8" REBAR
DOC. NO. 459

5/8" REBAR

5/8" REBAR

R N

W T

N

T

R

W

19 20
145

43

17
3
18

41

45

45

43

18

19

.R

OC

W

R

T
N

4/1

1

45

43

7

18

.R

OC

W

R

T

N

4/1

1

R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W
R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W R/W

R/
W

R/
W

R/
W

R/
W

R/
W

R/
W



H:
\J

BN
\7

00
0\

70
60

\7
06

0_
00

20
\C

AD
\P

LA
T.

dw
g

Sheet 2 of 2
Project No. 7060-0018

15th ST SE

VICINITY  MAP
1" = 2000'

18 1713

SITE LOCATION

Owners' Certificate and Dedication:

Know All Persons by these Presents: That Beverly Bower and MT, LLLP, a North Dakota limited liability limited partnership, is the owner and proprietor of the following
described tract of land:

That part of the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 18, Township 143 North, Range 54 West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Cass County, North
Dakota, described as follows:

Beginning at the southeast corner of said Southwest Quarter; thence South 88°21'12” West, along the southerly line of said Southwest Quarter, for a distance of
332.67 feet; thence North 02°24'40” West for a distance of 421.47 feet; thence North 86°12'53” East for a distance of 332.74 feet to a point of intersection with the
easterly line of said Southwest Quarter; thence South 02°24'40” East, along the easterly line of said Southwest Quarter, for a distance of 433.89 feet to the Point of
Beginning.

Said tract contains 3.266 acres, more or less.

And that said party has caused the same to be surveyed and platted as DOUGLAS BOWER SUBDIVISION, and do hereby dedicate to the public for public use the Public
Streets and the Utility Easements as shown on this Plat.

In witness whereof we have set our hands and seals:

Owner: 
Beverly Bower and MT, LLLP

_______________________________
Michelle Thompson, General Partner

State of North Dakota )
) ss

County of Cass )

On this _____day of ______________, 20 _____, before me, a notary public within and for said county and state, personally appeared Michelle Thompson, General
Partner of Beverly Bower and MT, LLLP, a North Dakota limited liability limited partnership, known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing
instrument and acknowledged that she executed same on behalf of said LLLP.

Notary Public:____________________________________

T. 143 N. - R. 54 W.

Surveyor's Certificate:

I, Curtis A. Skarphol, Professional Land Surveyor under the laws of the State of North Dakota, do hereby certify on this ______day of____________, 20_____, that the
plat hereon is a true and correct representation of the survey thereof, that all distances are correctly shown on said plat in feet and decimals of a foot, and that the
monuments for the guidance of future surveys have been placed in the ground as shown.

___________________________________________
Curtis A. Skarphol, Professional Land Surveyor
North Dakota Reg. No. 4723
1401 21st Ave. N.
Fargo, ND  58102
Phone: 701-237-5065
E-mail address:  cskarphol@houstoneng.com

State of North Dakota )
) ss

County of Cass )

On this _____day of ______________, 20 _____, before me, a notary public within and for said county and state, personally appeared Curtis A. Skarphol, known to be the
person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged that he executed same as his free act and deed.

Notary Public:____________________________________

Cass County Engineer:

Reviewed by the Cass County Engineer this _________day of ______________, 20_______.

___________________________________________
Jason Benson, Cass County Engineer

Page Township:

Reviewed by Page Township, Cass County, North Dakota, this_______day of ______________, 20___.

_____________________________________________
Justin Dahl, Chair

Attest:  _______________________________________
Keith Koenig, Clerk

Cass County Planning Commission:

Reviewed by the Cass County Planning Commission this __________day of _______________, 20________.

____________________________________________
Ken Lougheed, Chair

Attest:  ______________________________________
    Secretary

Cass County Board of Commissioners' Approval:

Approved by Cass County, North Dakota, this ________day of______________, 20___.

_____________________________________________
Rick Steen, Chair

Attest:  _______________________________________
  Brandy Madrigga, Cass County Finance Director

14th ST SE

13
8t

h 
A

VE
 S

E

13
8t

h 
1/

2 
A

VE
 S

E

PRELIMINARY PLAT

BEING  A  PLAT  OF  PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER

CASS  COUNTY,  NORTH  DAKOTA
SECTION 18, T. 143 N.,  R. 54 W.,  5th  P.M.

DOUGLAS BOWER SUBDIVISION




































































































	Thursday, June 23, 2022 at 7:00 a.m.
	22365 - TEPI ACCESS EASEMENTS 6-2.pdf
	OVERALL MAP OF ACCESS EASEMENTS 6-2-ACCESS EASE A B C
	ACCESS EASEMENT A 6-2-ACCESS EASE A
	ACCESS EASEMENT A 6-2-ACCESS EASE A P2
	ACCESS EASEMENT B 6-2-ACCESS EASE B
	ACCESS EASEMENT B 6-2-ACCESS EASE B P2
	ACCESS EASEMENT B 6-2-ACCESS EASE B P3

	Prelim Plat Cottonwood Acres.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	2106-01237_Plat-Layout1
	2106-01237_Plat-Layout1 (2)


	Cottonwood Acres.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1

	2106-01237_Plat-Layout1 (2).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1 (2)



	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

